

Ronald Reagan Presidential Library
Digital Library Collections

This is a PDF of a folder from our textual collections.

Collection: Parvin, Landon: Files
Folder Title: [December 1981:] Hickey, Ed:
Terrorism Speech (continued) (1)
Box: 12

To see more digitized collections visit:

<https://reaganlibrary.gov/archives/digital-library>

To see all Ronald Reagan Presidential Library inventories visit:

<https://reaganlibrary.gov/document-collection>

Contact a reference archivist at: reagan.library@nara.gov

Citation Guidelines: <https://reaganlibrary.gov/citing>

National Archives Catalogue: <https://catalog.archives.gov/>

Withdrawal/Redaction Sheet

Ronald Reagan Library

Case:1162

Archivist: Kelly Barton

DOC	TYPE	DATE	PAGES	CLASS.	CLOSED
1	Draft	11-30-1981	1		08-14-2003
<p>NSC #: WHORM Subject #:</p> <p>To:</p> <p>From:</p> <p>Subject: re speech on terrorism, w/notations (page 14 only) (document pending further review)</p> <p style="text-align: right; font-style: italic;">4/13/04 KOB</p>					

Restriction :

COLLECTION: Parvin, C. Landon: Files

SERIES:

TITLE: [December 1981:] Hickey, Ed: Terrorism Speech (Continued) (1)

~~OAID NUMBER: 5443~~

BOX NUMBER: 12 **Folder #:** of

Restriction Codes

Presidential Records Act - [44 U.S.C. 2204(a)]
 PRA-1 -National Security Classified Information.
 PRA-2 -Relating to the appointment to Federal Office.
 PRA-3 -Release would violate a Federal statute.
 PRA-4 -Release would disclose trade secrets or confidential commercial or financial information.
 PRA-5 -Release would disclose confidential advice between the President and his advisors, or between such advisors.
 PRA-6 -Release would constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion of personal privacy.
 C. -Closed in accordance with restrictions contained in donors' deed of gift.
 PRM. -Closed as a personal record misfile.

Freedom of Information Act - [5 U.S.C. 552(b)]
 FOIA(b)(1) -National security classified information.
 FOIA(b)(2) -Release would disclose internal personnel rules and practices of an agency.
 FOIA(b)(3) -Release would violate a Federal statute.
 FOIA(b)(4) -Release would disclose trade secrets or confidential or financial information.
 FOIA(b)(6) -Release would constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion of personal privacy.
 FOIA(b)(7) -Release would disclose information compiled for law enforcement purposes.
 FOIA(b)(8) -Release would disclose information concerning the regulation of financial institutions.
 FOIA(b)(9) -Release would disclose geological or geophysical information concerning wells.

(Rohrabacher)
December 1, 1981
Second Draft

ED HICKEY: SPEECH ON TERRORISM

Since the late 1960's Western nations have increasingly suffered from acts of political terrorism. By the early 1970's a clear pattern of international terrorism was developing -- a pattern that continues to this day.

If the late 1960's and early 1970's are remembered as years of protest, the 1980's, unless we come to grips with this very real problem, could well be remembered as a decade of terror.

The first year of the decade, 1980, was a record year for international terrorism. State Department figures show there were 760 international terrorist acts, which resulted in more casualties than in any year since the U.S. Government began keeping statistics on the subject. Last year, 642 people were killed in international terrorist acts; 1,078 were wounded. Ten Americans were among the dead; 94 Americans were among the injured.

Recent statistics suggest a frightening trend. Death and injury resulting from terrorist violence is up and much of it is directed against Americans. Of the 760 acts in 1980, 278, or 38 percent, were directed against Americans or American property. In the first 5 months of 1981, the high level of terrorist activity continued with 312 acts of international terror world wide -- 37 percent of which were directed against Americans or American property.

Terrorism is something that everyone seems to be against, yet few can define. So perhaps we should start with a definition. It evolved from the Latin word "terror", which means to frighten. For our purposes today, we will define terrorism as the use of violence or destructive force to frighten a government or population in order to achieve "political ends."

Today we will focus on international terrorism. While domestic political violence is a problem to be faced by many countries, the threat of international terrorism is a matter of extreme gravity for all non-communist nations -- especially those within the Western alliance.

I will not be talking about insurrection. Terrorism should not be confused with insurrection; if it were the same, all those who fight oppression would be labeled as terrorists. One of the more damaging cliches currently making the rounds is that "One man's terrorist is another's Freedom Fighter." This absurd notion compares the Red Brigade and the Symbionse Liberation Army with Afghan Freedom Fighters and heroes of the American Revolution.

Anyone who compares George Washington to the Weather Underground just isn't playing with a full deck of cards. The radical chic notwithstanding, there is no basis for comparing terrorist to those who have fought for freedom. The principle targets of terrorists are innocent civilians

or unarmed officials who are killed in order to terrorize populations or goad the government into unwarranted repression.

Does this description match the Afghan Freedom Fighters who battle Russian tanks or the patriots of the American Revolution? George Washington, as it will be recalled, met the British army head on. Furthermore, when guerrilla tactics were used, it was against British troops and other combatants. This is a far cry from terrorists who bomb and kidnap unarmed civilians and plot the assassinations of political opponents.

One of the grossest image distortions of recent years is the portrayal of terrorists as Robin Hoods and romantic swashbucklers. In reality, a terrorist is a coward -- an individual inflicts death and destruction from hiding or attacks unarmed opponents. Placing a bomb in the rest room of a bank or shooting down a school superintendent takes no courage. Instead these are the dishonorable acts of weaklings who smuggly hide and watch their destruction from a distance rather than facing the enemy. These are the acts of defective personalities who see themselves as Messianic saviors of mankind, yet don't have the character to compete for influence democratically.

The romanticization of terrorism is no surprise, however. Terrorism in the Western democracies sprang from the protest era of the late 1960's, which itself was romanticized by the media. During that era, leftist marauders were glamorized

and idealized by a news media which never mentioned the totalitarian philosophy which served as the underpinning of many radical activist organizations. It was as if the police were Nazis repressing peace demonstrations because they were inclined toward war. The police, in reality, were often coping with organized groups who considered themselves communist revolutionaries, seeking violence and confrontation and hiding amidst a crowd of peace marchers.

As protest marches faded it was a small step for the wilder members of the violent Students for a Democratic Society to become bombers for the Radical Weather Underground. In Europe, Germany's Baader-Meinhof gang and Italy's Red Brigades seem to have come from the same "New Left" roots.

They were formed around a nucleus of young people who were radicalized by the street violence and university Marxism of the late 1960's. Unlike their counterparts in the United States, they have been highly successful in kidnapping and assassination. The Red Brigades popularized the term "knee-capping" -- which is nothing more than crippling innocent victims by shooting them in the legs. Their most dastardly act was the kidnapping and murder of Aldo Moro, a man who headed the Christian Democratic Party and would likely have been the Italian Prime Minister except for the intervention of these fanatics.

Similarly, Germany's Baader-Meinhof gang conducted a war of terror which took the lives of innocent Germans for

over half a decade. One of the most famous of their crimes was the brutal slaying of industrialist Hanns-Martin Schleyer in 1977. Recently the remnants of this gang have been attacking American military personal.

What kind of people are these terrorists? They are, generally, individuals who have never worked at a regular job, yet constantly talk about representing the working people. Sounds familiar; doesn't it? Far from being workers, terrorists, especially those in America, are often from affluent families. One study by the German government revealed that 36 percent of those arrested in connection with terrorist organizations in the 1970's were college graduates from the upper income levels of German society.

In the United States, Kathy Bodineen, who was recently arrested for alleged terrorist activities, comes from a wealthy family as did several other prominent members of the Weather Underground. Her particular clique, it should be noted, began as a protest group on Columbia University -- hardly a working class school.

Unfortunately, the escapades of these Mercedes Bendez revolutionaries have left a trail littered with maimed bodies. Their last bit of alleged activism -- the Brinks armored care robbery -- left three men dead . . . working people with families, with children who will no longer have a father to help them along in life.

Another revealing aspect of the personality profile of alleged terrorists is the political background of their family. Many are not only from wealthy homes, but also from families whose politics are ultra left. Kathy Bodin's father is a wealthy lawyer well known for his defense of left wing radicals.

Similarly, the world's most wanted terrorist, known as Carlos, comes from a wealthy Venezuelan family. His father is so far to the left that he named all of his children after Illich Vladimir Lenin. Carlos's real name is Illich Ramirez Sanchez.

It appears that these revolutionaries are not revolting at all. Instead they are dedicated to fulfilling long-held and deeply-rooted aspirations. This, by the way, is in stark contrast to suggestions that these are psychopaths who are revolting against all authority. These are not anarchists.

Not all terrorist organizations, however, evolved from student activism. The Irish Republican Army, the Palestine Liberation Organization, the Puerto Rican FALN and the Basque ETA all started with some territorial or nationalistic claim; all have bloody histories. The ETA, alone, in the past 13 years has killed more than 350 carefully chosen victims. The bloodletting of the IRA and the PLO is infamous.

And what is it that these and other terrorist organizations really want? Why do these individuals, among millions of

their fellow citizens feel justified in conducting campaigns of murder, destruction and kidnapping.

Much can be said of their motives, but one thing is certain, contrary to their image these groups -- especially the former student activists -- are not Democratically minded reformers faced with the stone wall of authoritarianism.

The Puerto Rican separatists, for example, are not facing the fist of the United States. Instead, they are primarily thwarted by the will of the people of Puerto Rico. Only a miniscule number of Puerto Ricans want interdependence, they turn it down by huge majorities every time it is voted upon, just as they reject political parties dedicated to independence.

Italy, on the other hand, may be less than perfect, but it is still a relatively free society. Yet terrorism in Europe's boot has been rampant. And those singled out by Italy's terrorists are not the fascists or raving monarchists. The Red Brigaders kidnap and murder Democratic moderates like Aldo Moro.

The infamous Carlos comes from Venezuela -- one of the freest nations in the Western Hemisphere.

No. Today's terrorism is not a case of individuals struggling against tyranny. The plague of terrorism now sweeping the West is far more insidious than that.

All too often the ideology of terrorists is ignored, just as it was of the New Left in the late 1960's. A close

examination reveals most of these groups are dedicated to some form of revolutionary communist ideology, a significant yet largely unassimilated fact.

Terrorists, far from being revolutionaries fighting for freedom, are actually totalitarian soldiers trying to destroy liberty. They, clearly, seek more repression. Let me repeat that: Terrorists want the governments they oppose to become more repressive.

Repression, the terrorist calculates, turns idealists into violent revolutionaries. It also can be manipulated to radicalize a specific segment of society -- a minority group, young people, farmers or whoever is most susceptible.

The last thing terrorists want are free elections and civil liberties where ideas compete in a political arena. That is not the type of society they desire. Nor are they simply opposed to all state power as the anarchist as of the last century. Instead, they are communist revolutionaries, seeking dictatorship of the proletariat; until this is recognized, terrorism will continue to plague the Western Democracies.

Demonstrating this all important fact is not difficult. Why does the Puerto Rican FALN conduct bombings in the United States? The answer is simple: Their goal is to provoke government retaliation upon the citizens of Puerto Rico, thus radicalizing them and turning them into leftist

cannon fodder. To our credit and in testimony to the strength of our democracy there has been no such retaliation.

But what happens in nations without such a strong Democratic heritage? Twenty years ago Cuba almost succeeded in undermining democracy in Venezuela even before it had a chance to get off the ground. Venezuelans are aware that Castro's terrorist campaign almost scuttled their chance for Western-Style Democracy -- something they'd struggled so long to obtain. With a little help from God and the United States of America, the Venezuelan military did not intervene. That would have played into the hands of the terrorists and resulted in Civil War.

In Spain terrorism increased after Franco's death. The attempted military coup earlier this year is an example of the knee-jerk reaction terrorists try to provoke. Luckily for Spain, King Juan Carlos is a leader with courage and character. He beat back the coup and continues to oppose terrorism vigorously. The Reagan Administration unequivocally stands behind King Juan Carlos and the Democratic forces in Spain.

Contemporary terrorism appears to be emulating an Algerian role model. In Algeria the French mistook the terrorism of a small group for an insurrection. French retaliation against the Moslem population resulted in popular revolt.

Terrorists seek popular revolt because they are convinced it will eventually lead to Communist dictatorship -- and that is their true goal.

Even groups based on territorial or nationalistic claims are often little more than communist revolutionaries coopting national sentiment to lay the foundation for a new Communist dictatorship.

In Northern Ireland, for example, the IRA slaughters innocent people in the name of uniting North and South, but the long-range goal of the IRA is not just a united Ireland. Bernadette Devlin, it should be noted, says the struggle in Northern Ireland is "an integral part of the international working-class movement." Now what does that mean? To make it clear, listen to the words of IRAer, Michael Farrell. "Victory in the North," he states, "means not just defeat of the Loyalists" -- that's the Protestants -- "and the unity of Ireland, but also the collapse of the government in the south and an anti-imperialist revolution in that country."

To claim that these people are Catholics is a cruel joke. These are not even Irishmen at heart.

This insidious terrorism does not happen in a vacuum. Earlier this year Secretary of State Haig testified that Communist states, especially the Soviet Union, "bear a large measure of responsibility of international terrorism." There is a mountain of evidence to back him up. At the very

least, international terrorism as we know it could not function without the support -- the aid and comfort -- given by the Soviet Union.

First, a large number of terrorists have been trained by the Soviets. The infamous "Carlos," for instance, was educated at Patrice Lumumba University in Moscow. Shortly after leaving, his terrorism career began. You can bet he learned more about explosives than literature at ole Lumumba.

Terrorism schools in Soviet puppet states grind out terrorist soldiers who create havoc all over the Western world. Czechoslovakia has such a terrorist school. It is under the direct supervision of the KGB, and according to a senior Czech defector, at least 14 of the senior members of Italy's Red Brigade were trained there -- including the men who murdered Aldo Moro.

Cuba is a notorious training and staging area for terrorists. This point was reconfirmed earlier this year when a band of terrorists were caught crossing into Columbia. They admitted being trained and equipped in Cuba. Importantly, Nester Garcia, a high ranking Cuban intelligence officer who recently defected, says that the Soviet KGB has completely controlled and financed Cuban intelligence since 1969. The terrorist training, then, is at least condoned, and perhaps bankrolled by the Soviets. This is true of Czechoslovakia,

Cuba, South Yemen and Libya. This Soviet involvement seems to be part of an overall international strategy.

If you are missing my point, I'll spell it out: Much of the terrorism experienced in the Western Democracies is, as Secretary Haig says, the responsibility of the Soviet Union. And it goes beyond training.

Soviet arms are being funneled to terrorists through Cuba, Libya, and other puppet states. In 1973 the Irish Navy seized the S.S. Claudia. It was crammed with Soviet weapons on the way to the IRA via Libya. Similarly, in 1971 the Dutch intercepted a shipment of weapons from Prague destined for Irish terrorists. At the same time, in the Western Hemisphere, Cuban support for terrorists goes unabated.

Worse yet, there is ample evidence that Soviet puppet states offer refuge for international terrorists. They are not, as some would have us believe, holed up in some dark little inner city apartment. Carlos has been reported to be living a lavish life in Libya. Giangiacomo Feltrinelli, an Italian terrorist, was blown apart trying to attach a bomb to power lines outside of Milan. A police investigation revealed that he had made 22 visits to Czechoslovakia under a false name; you can bet they knew who he was.

In our own country radical leftists were helped along by Cuban Intelligence, which, as I've already said, is totally controlled and bankrolled by the Soviet KGB. Two examples of this: In the early 1960's Progressive Labor

Party, which labels itself a revolutionary Marxist Party, sent some of its leaders to Cuba. One of them, Philip Abbott Luce, says he came back with a pocket full of cash to help him in his "revolutionary" activities -- activities that included teaching ghetto blacks how to make Molotov cocktails. More recently, defectors from the Weather Underground indicate the Cuban Embassy in Canada served as a communication liaison when they were on the run.

All of this is obviously happening with full knowledge, if not at the direction of the Soviet government. Soviet motives deserve scrutiny.

One should never forget that the Russians still have an ideological commitment to the communist philosophy -- a philosophy tied to the concept of violent revolution and dictatorship. Their system -- without profit motive or religion -- is, in fact, so dull and unproductive that support of revolutionaries is one of the few things that gives meaning to their system. But ideology is surely not the only motive. The primary consideration for Soviets is likely national defense. They must perceive terrorism as a cheap method of destabilizing the West, which in turn has positive security implications for the Soviet Union. If so, it certainly is a cheap method of defense as compared the the enormous cost of today's modern weapons systems.

The question remains of what we can do, and what we are doing, to meet this challenge. Obviously, there is not a

simple answer; however, the following are some things that can make and will make a difference.

1. First the foremost, America must never turn to repression to combat terrorism. Some nations in Latin America retorted to brutality, repression and torture to combat terrorism; doing so, they destroyed their own freedom and created societies that are a little better than those behind the Iron Curtain.

2. The alternative to repression is intelligence. The Reagan Administration is dedicated to rebuilding America's badly damaged intelligence system. We are moving to eliminate unwarranted restrictions placed on those who provide the information necessary to combat terrorism and protect our citizens from this threat.

3. We must continue to call the Soviets to task for their support of international terrorism. Secretary Haig will continue his leadership role in this area. If relations between our nations are to improve, and we hope they do, the Soviets must agree -- at least privately -- to pull back from their support of international terrorism.

Some people call this linkage. Well that's what it is. It doesn't preclude any cooperation without an agreement on terrorism, but it does suggest that relations will be better and agreements more substantial if the Soviets are acting in a civilized way.

4. The Reagan Administration also intends to strictly enforce current law and support any further legislation needed to prevent Americans from aiding terrorist groups. Whether it's financial support for the IRA from Irish Americans or the contracting of experts to help Libya -- this sort of thing has to stop.

5. We are committed to work even more closely with our allies to combat this international problem. Cleaning up our intelligence mess will help because some of our allies hesitate to work with us for fear of restrictions and leaks.

6. Number six is not so easy. The handling of some terrorist events by the media has been a disgrace. Los Angeles Police Chief Darrell Gates at a recent meeting of the International Association of Police Chiefs complained of hostage or terrorist incidents, "It becomes instant drama -- a live show, even entertainment." The news media will have to learn what the word "responsibility" means. We do not advocate legal restrictions, but terrorists must know that taking hostages will not insure publicity for their cause. This will require much more voluntary cooperation between authorities and the news media.

7. We must take a close look at the punishment of those convicted of terrorism. Imprisoning terrorists won't work. It leads to further violence during attempts to free jailed gang members. It was just this sort of thing that led the Baader-Meinhof gang to murder Hanns-Martin Schleyer. It also encourages several hijackings in Europe. Terrorists

who cause the death of innocent people, even if by accident, should face the death penalty; punishment should be swift and certain.

8. The United States and each of its allies must protect its diplomats and embassies and maintain the special military capability needed to handle any terrorist threat. The Reagan Administration is fully committed to this. You can be assured that we are not afraid to exercise force when necessary to protect the lives and freedom of American citizens. In a speech to West Point's graduating class, President Reagan proclaimed America's era of self-doubt is over -- and it is.

9. Any nation directly aiding terrorists should be diplomatically, economically isolated until such behavior ceases. The first steps toward this have been taken by private airlines who now refuse to fly nations that harbor hijackers. For this reason, earlier this year the U.S. Government gave the boot to the few Libyan diplomats remaining in this country since the cessation of diplomatic relations.

10. Finally, the terrorism that confronts the Western Democracies must be recognized for what it is: a totalitarian threat to freedom. Terrorists are no better than Nazis or fascists. Simply because they do not wear uniforms and march in a row does not make them any less totalitarian. The free people of the world must commit themselves to winning the battle against terrorism, just as they committed themselves in the battle against tyranny a generation ago.

The Reagan Administration is committed to maintain the security and freedom of the people of the United States, and we need your support in this effort. When President Reagan welcomed home the hostages only a few days after his inauguration, he promised "swift and effective retribution" for acts of terrorism. I support that stance with all my heart because, as an American, I know we must have courage to meet this challenge. Those engaged in terrorism do not respect reason; they do not respect sincerity. But I can tell you with Ronald Reagan as President they will respect the United States. We are confident that we will prevail over the threat of terrorism, just as Americans have triumphed over threats to our freedom in the past. We will do it because it is our responsibility to do it. We owe it to those who came before us. We owe it to the next generation of Americans.

Thank you for having me with you today.

(Rohrabacher)
November 30, 1981
First Draft

ED HICKEY: SPEECH ON TERRORISM

Since the late 1960's Western nations have increasingly ^{suffered} experienced acts of terrorism. By the early 1970's a clear pattern of international terrorism was developing -- a pattern that continues to this day.

If the late 1960's and early 1970's are remembered as years of protest, the 1980's, unless we come to grips with this very real problem, could well be remembered as a decade of terror.

The first year of the decade, 1980, was a record year for international terrorism. ^{State Department figures show} There were 760 international terrorist acts, which resulted in more casualties than in any year since the U.S. Government began keeping statistics on the subject, ~~in 1968~~. Last year, 642 people were killed in international terrorist acts; 1,078 were wounded. Ten Americans were among the dead; 94 Americans were among the injured.

~~Frighteningly~~ ^{Recent} the statistics suggest a ~~trend over the~~ ^{frightening} ~~past few years toward increasing death and injury from~~ ^{resulting from} terrorist violence. ^{is up and must be} Of the 760 acts, ~~278~~ ²⁷⁸, or 38 percent, were directed against Americans or American property. In the first 5 months of 1981, the high level of terrorist activity continued with 312 acts of international terror world wide -- 37 percent of which were directed against Americans or American property.

Terrorism is something that everyone seems to be against, yet few can define. So perhaps we should start with a definition. It evolved from the Latin word "terror", which means to frighten. For our purposes today, we will define terrorism as the use of violence or destructive force to frighten a government or population in order to achieve "political ends."

INSERT
I will not be talking about insurrection.

✓ Terrorism should not be confused with insurrection; if it were the same, all those who fight oppression would be labeled as terrorists. One of the more damaging cliches currently making the rounds is that "One man's terrorist is another's Freedom Fighter." This absurd notion compares the Red Brigade and the Symbonise Liberation Army with Afghan Freedom Fighters and heroes of the American Revolution.

~~This is this kind of intellectual dream world, usually a product of the never-never land of some major university,~~

~~that creates nightmares for the rest of humanity.~~ The radical chic notwithstanding, there is no basis for comparing terrorist to ~~those who have fought for freedom.~~ Anyone who compares George Washington to the Weather Underground just isn't playing with a full deck of cards.

→ The principle targets of terrorists are innocent civilians or unarmed officials ^{who are killed} in order to terrorize populations or goad the government into unwarranted repression.

Does this description match the Afghan Freedom Fighters who battle Russian tanks or the patriots of the American Revolution? George Washington, as it will be recalled, met the British army head on. Furthermore, when guerrilla tactics were used, it was against British troops and other combatants. This is a far cry from terrorists who bomb and kidnap unarmed civilians and plot the assassinations of political opponents.

One of the grossest image distortions of recent years is the portrayal of terrorists as Robin Hoods and romantic swashbucklers. In reality, a terrorist is a coward -- an individual ~~who chooses to~~ ^{or attacks unarmed opponents,} inflicts death and destruction from hiding. Placing a bomb in the rest room of a bank or shooting down a school superintendent takes no courage. Instead these are the acts ^{dishonorable of} ~~of cowards~~ ^{of defective personalities} who smuggly hide and watch their destruction from a distance rather than facing ~~this~~ enemy. These are the acts of defective personalities who see themselves as Messianic saviors of mankind, yet don't have the character to compete for influence democratically.

Return

The romanticization of terrorism is no surprise, however. Terrorism in the Western democracies sprang from the protest era of the late 1960's, which itself was romanticized by the media. During that era, leftist marauders were glamorized and idealized by a news media which never mentioned the totalitarian philosophy which served as the underpinning of many radical activist organizations. It was as if the police were Nazis repressing peace demonstrations because they were inclined toward war. The police, in reality, were often coping with organized groups who considered themselves communist revolutionaries, seeking violence and confrontation and hiding amidst a crowd of peace marchers.

As protest marches faded it was a small step for the wilder members of the violent Students for a Democratic Society to become bombers for the Radical Weather Underground. In Europe, Germany's Baader-Meinhof gang and Italy's Red Brigades seem to have come from the same "New Left" roots.

They were formed around a nucleus of young people who were radicalized by the street violence and university Marxism of the late 1960's. Unlike their counterparts in the United States, they have been highly successful in kidnapping and assassination. The Red Brigades have popularized the term "knee-capping" -- which is nothing more than crippling innocent victims by shooting them in the legs. Their most dastardly act was the kidnapping and murder of Aldo Moro, a man who headed the Christian Democratic Party and would

likely have ^{been} ~~headed~~ the Italian ^{Prime Minister} ~~government~~ except for the intervention of these fanatics.

Similarly, Germany's Baader-Meinhof gang conducted a war of terror which took the lives of innocent Germans for over half a decade. One of the most famous of their crimes was the brutal slaying of industrialist Hanns-Martin Schleyer in 1977. Recently the remnants of this gang have been attacking American military personal.

What kind of people are ~~part of~~ these terrorists? They are, generally, individuals who have never worked at a regular job, yet constantly talk about representing the working people. Sounds familiar; doesn't it? Far from being workers, ^{terrorists} ~~these groups~~, especially ^{those in} ~~the ones in~~ America, are ^{often} ~~composed of individuals~~ from affluent families. One study by the German government revealed that 36 percent of those arrested in connection with terrorist organizations in the 1970's were college graduates from the upper income levels of German society.

In the United States, Kathy Bodineen, ^{SP} ~~for example~~, who was recently arrested for alleged terrorist activities, comes from a wealthy family as did several other prominent members of the Weather Underground. Her particular clique, it should be noted, began as a protest group on Columbia University -- hardly a working class school.

Unfortunately, the escapades of these Mercedes Bendez revolutionaries have left a trail littered with maimed

bodies. Their last bit of alleged activism -- the Brinks armored care robbery -- left three men dead . . . working people with families, with children who will no longer have a father to help them along in life.

Another revealing aspect of the personality profile of alleged terrorists is the political background of their family. Many are not only from wealthy homes, but also from ~~ultra-left~~ families ^{whose politics are ultra left.} Kathy Bodin's father is a wealthy lawyer well known for his defense of left wing radicals.

Similarly, the world's most wanted terrorist, known as Carlos, comes from a wealthy Venezuelan family. His father is so far ^{to the} left that he named all of his children after Illich Vladimir Lenin. Carlos's real name is Illich Ramirez Sanchez.

It appears that these revolutionaries are not revolting at all. Instead they are dedicated to fulfilling long-held and deeply-rooted aspirations. This, by the way, is in stark contrast to suggestions that these are psychopaths who are revolting against all authority. ^{These are not anarchists.}

Not all terrorist organizations, however, evolved from student activism. The Irish Republican Army, the Palestine Liberation Organization, the Puerto Rican FALN and the Basque ETA all started with some territorial or nationalistic claim; all have bloody histories. The ETA, alone, in the past 13 years has killed more than 350 carefully chosen victims. The bloodletting of the IRA and the PLO is infamous.

And what is it that these and other terrorist organizations really want? Why do these individuals, among million of their fellow citizens feel justified in conducting ^{Campaigns} ~~mayhem~~ ^{of murder, destruction and kidnapping} ~~and brutality?~~

Much can be said of their motives, but one thing is certain, contrary to their image these groups -- especially the former student activists -- are not Democratically minded reformers faced with the stone wall of authoritarianism.

The Puerto Rican separatists, for example, are not facing the fist of the United States. Instead, they are primarily thwarted by the will of the people of Puerto Rico. Only a miniscule number of Puerto Ricans want interdependence, they turn it down by huge majorities every time it is voted upon, just as they reject political parties dedicated to independence.

Italy, on the other hand, may be less than perfect, but it is still a relatively free society. Yet ^{in Europe's books} ~~the~~ terrorism ~~is~~ has been rampant. And those singled out by Italy's terrorists are not the fascists or raving monarchists. The Red Brigades' kidnaps and murders Democratic moderates like Aldo Moro.

The infamous Carlos comes from Venezuela -- one of the freest nations in the Western Hemisphere.

No. Today's terrorism is not a case of individuals ^{struggling against} ~~standing~~ ^{now} ~~up~~ to tyranny. The plague of terrorism sweeping the West is far more insidious than that.

All too often the ideology of terrorists is ignored, just as it was of the New Left in the late 1960's. A close examination reveals most of these groups are dedicated to some form of revolutionary communist ideology, a significant yet largely ^{unassimilated} unrecognized fact.

Terrorists, far from being revolutionaries fighting for freedom, are actually totalitarian soldiers trying to destroy liberty. They, clearly, seek more repression. Let me repeat that; terrorists want the governments they oppose to become more repressive.

Repression, the terrorist calculates, turns idealists into violent revolutionaries. It also can be manipulated to radicalize a specific segment of society -- a minority group, young people, farmers or whoever is most susceptible.

The last thing terrorists want are free elections and civil liberties where ideas compete in a political arena. ^{power as the anarchist asserts of the 19th century} That is not the type of society they desire. ^{Not are they simply opposed to all state} ~~And these are, for the most part, not anarchists. The threat today is not even comparable to the anarchists of the last century.~~

Instead, they are communist revolutionaries, seeking dictatorship of the proletariat; until this is recognized, terrorism will continue to plague the Western Democracies.

Demonstrating this all important fact is not difficult. Why does the Puerto Rican FALN conduct bombings in the United States? The answer is simple: ~~Their~~ goal is to provoke government retaliation upon the citizens of Puerto

Rico, thus radicalizing them and turning them into leftist cannon fodder. To our credit and in testimony to the strength of our democracy there has been no such retaliation.

But what happens in nations without such a strong Democratic heritage? Twenty years ago Cuba almost succeeded in undermining democracy in Venezuela even before it had a chance to get off the ground. Venezuelans are aware that Castro's terrorist campaign almost scuttled their chance for Western-Style Democracy -- something they'd struggled so long to obtain. ^{With a little help from God and the United States of America} ~~luckily~~ the Venezuelan military did not intervene. That would have played into the hands of the terrorists and resulted in Civil War. 5

In Spain terrorism increased after Franco's death. The attempted military coup earlier this year is an example of the knee-jerk reaction terrorists try to provoke. Luckily for Spain, King Juan Carlos ^{is a leader with courage and character} ~~has turned out to be an impressive leader~~. He beat back the coup and continues to ^{oppose terrorism} vigorously. ~~oppose terrorism~~. The Reagan Administration ^{unequivocally} ~~clearly~~ stands behind King Juan Carlos and the Democratic forces in Spain. ^{Contemporary terrorism appears to be imitating} ~~All of this is based on an Algerian role model.~~ In Algeria the French mistook the terrorism of a small group for an insurrection. French retaliation against the Moslem population resulted in popular revolt.

~~This kind of terrorism accomplishes two goals: It frightens some into submission and produces an overreaction~~

Terrorist seek popular revol because they are c edit will
~~on the part of the authorities. This, according to terrorists~~
~~theory, will eventually lead to Communist dictatorship~~ and that the

Even groups based on territorial or nationalistic claims are often little more than communist revolutionaries coopting national sentiment to lay the foundation for a new Communist dictatorship.

In Northern Ireland, for example, the IRA slaughters innocent people in the name of uniting North and South, but the long-range goal of the IRA is not just a united Ireland. Bernadette Devlin, it should be noted, says the struggle in Northern Ireland is "an integral part of the international working-class movement." Now what does that mean? To make it clear, listen to the words of IRAer, Michael Farrell. "Victory in the North," he states, "means not just defeat of the Loyalists" -- that's the Protestants -- "and the unity of Ireland, but also the collapse of the government in the south and an anti-imperialist revolution in that country."

To claim that these people are Catholics is a cruel joke. These are not even Irishmen at heart.

This insidious terrorism does not happen in a vacuum. Earlier this year Secretary of State Haig testified that Communist states, especially the Soviet Union, "bear a large measure of responsibility of international terrorism." There is a mountain of evidence to back him up. At the very least, international terrorism as we know it could not function without the support -- the aid and comfort -- given by the Soviet Union.

First, a large number of terrorists have been trained ~~for their foul deeds~~ by the Soviets. The infamous "Carlos," for instance, was ^{educated} ~~trained~~ at Patrice Lumumba University in Moscow. Shortly after leaving, his terrorism career began. *You can bet he learned more about explosives than literature at ole Lumumba U.*

Terrorism schools in Soviet puppet states grind out terrorist soldiers who create havoc all over the Western world. Czechoslovakia has such a terrorist school. It is under the direct supervision of the KGB, and according to a senior Czech defector, at least 14 of the senior members of Italy's Red Brigade were trained there -- including the men who murdered Aldo Moro.

Cuba is a notorious training and staging area for terrorists. This point was reconfirmed earlier this year when a band of terrorists were caught crossing into Columbia. They admitted being trained and equipped in Cuba. Importantly, Nester Garcia, a high ranking Cuban intelligence officer who recently defected, says that the Soviet KGB has completely controlled and financed Cuban intelligence since 1969. The terrorist training, then, is at least condoned, and perhaps bankrolled by the Soviets. This is true of Czechoslovakia, Cuba, ^{South} Yemen and Libya. ^{this} Soviet involvement seems to be part of an overall international strategy.

If you are missing my point, I'll spell it out: Much of the terrorism experienced in the Western Democracies is, as Secretary Haig says, the responsibility of the Soviet Union. And it goes beyond training.

Soviet arms are being funneled to terrorists through Cuba, Libya, and other puppet states. In 1973 the Irish Navy seized the S.S. Claudia. It was crammed with Soviet weapons on the way to the IRA via Libya. Similarly, in 1971 the Dutch intercepted a shipment of weapons from Prague destined for Irish terrorists. At the same time, in the Western Hemisphere Cuban support for terrorists goes unabated.

Worse yet, there is ample evidence that Soviet puppet states offer refuge for international terrorists. Giangiaco-
 Feltrinelli, an Italian terrorist, was blown apart trying to attach a bomb to power lines outside of Milan. A police investigation revealed that using a false name he had made 22 visits to Czechoslovakia under a false name, you can bet they knew who he was.

In our own country radical leftists were helped along by Cuban Intelligence, which, as I've already said, is totally controlled and bankrolled by the Soviet KGB. Two examples of this: In the early 1960's Progressive Labor Party, which labels itself a revolutionary Marxist Party, sent some of its leaders to Cuba. One of them, Philip Abbott Luce, says he came back with a pocket full of cash to help him in his "revolutionary" activities -- activities that included teaching ghetto blacks how to make Molotov cocktails. More recently, ~~some~~ defectors from the Weather Underground indicate the Cuban Embassy in Canada served as a communication liaison when they were on the run.

~~Worse yet~~
 worse

They are not, as some would have us believe, holed up in some dark little inner city apartment. Some dark little inner city apartment. It has been reported to be a high rise building.

7

All of this is obviously happening with full knowledge, if not at the direction of the Soviet government. Soviet motives deserve scrutiny.

One should never forget that the Russians still have an ideological commitment to the communist philosophy -- a philosophy tied to the concept of violent revolution ^{and dictatorship}. Their system -- without profit motive or religion -- is, in fact, so dull and unproductive that ~~the Soviet Union's~~ support of revolutionaries is one of the few things that gives meaning to their system. But ideology surely is surely not the ^{only} ~~primary~~ motive. The primary consideration for Soviets is likely ~~the~~ national defense. They must perceive ~~it~~ ^{terrorism} as a cheap method of destabilizing the West, which in turn has positive security implications for the Soviet Union. If so, it certainly is a cheap method of defense as compared the enormous cost of today's modern weapons systems.

The question remains of what we can do, and what we are doing, to meet ^{this} ~~the~~ challenge ~~of terrorism~~. Obviously, there is not a simple answer; however, the following are some things that can make and will make a difference.

1. First the foremost, America must never turn to repression to combat terrorism. Some nations in Latin America retorted to brutality, repression and torture to combat terrorism; doing so, they destroyed their own freedom and created societies that are a little better than those behind the Iron Curtain.

2. The alternative to repression is intelligence. The Reagan Administration is dedicated to rebuilding America's badly damaged intelligence system. We are moving to eliminate unwarranted restrictions placed on ~~the FBI, the CIA and law~~ ^{those} ~~enforcers~~ who provide the information necessary to combat terrorism and protect our citizens from this threat.

3. ~~This Administration will~~ ^{We must} continue to call the Soviets to task for their support of international terrorism. ~~Secretary Haig will continue his leadership role in this area~~
~~This does not mean pounding on our chest in public, but, nevertheless, we do not intend to let the Soviets off the hook.~~ If relations between our nations are to improve, and we hope they do, the Soviets must agree -- at least privately -- to pull back from their support of international terrorism.

Some people call this linkage. Well that's what it is. It doesn't preclude any cooperation without an agreement on terrorism, but it does suggest that relations ~~would~~ ^{will} be better and agreements more substantial if the Soviets ~~were~~ ^{are} acting in a civilized way.

4. ^{also} The Reagan Administration intends to strictly enforce current law and support any further legislation needed to prevent Americans from ~~helping and financing~~ ^{aiding} terrorist groups. Whether it's financial support for the IRA from Irish Americans or the contracting of ~~U.S. citizens~~ ^{experts} to help Libya -- this sort of thing has to stop.

5. We are committed to work even more closely with our allies to combat this international problem. Cleaning up

our intelligence mess will help because some of our allies hesitate to work with us for fear of restrictions and leaks.

6. ^{Number six} This one is not so easy. The handling of some terrorist events by the media has been a disgrace. ^{INSORT #1} The news media will have to learn what the word "responsibility" means. We do not advocate legal restrictions, but terrorists must know that taking hostages will not insure publicity for their cause. This will require much more voluntary cooperation between authorities and the news media.

7. We must take a close look at the punishment of those convicted of terrorism, Imprisoning terrorists won't work. It leads to further violence during attempts to free jailed ^{gang members} terrorists.

It was just this sort of thing that led the Baader-Meinhof gang to murder Hanns-Martin Schleyer. ^{It also encourage several hijackings in Europe.} Terrorists who cause the death of ^{people} an innocent person, even if by accident, should face the death penalty; punishment should be swift and certain.

8. The United States and each of its allies must ^{protect its diplomats and Embassies and} maintain ^{the special force} military capability ^{needed} to handle any terrorist threat.

The Reagan Administration is fully committed to this ^{and you can be assured we are not at all necessary to protect force when} to exercise force when

9. Any nation directly aiding terrorists should be diplomatically, economically isolated until such behavior ceases. The first steps toward this have been taken by private airlines who now refuse to fly ^{nations that} to Libya because of ^{for this reason} Quaddafi's harboring of hijackers. Earlier this year the U.S. Government ^{gave the broke to the few} kicked the remaining Libyan diplomats ^{remaining} out of this country ^{since the cessation of diplomatic relations} for terrorist involvement by the Quaddafi government.

Handwritten notes on the right margin:
and you can be assured we are not at all necessary to protect force when
necessary to protect force when
Xellus and Freedom
of Americas
Citizens
can speak to
Luna Pading
Proclaim ed
Self as
is over
and

INSECRET #1

Los Angeles Police Chief Donnel Bates
at a ~~past~~^{recent} meeting of the International
Association of Police Chiefs ~~and~~
complained ~~that it becomes~~ of hostage
or terrorist incidents, "It becomes
instant drama - a live show, even
entertainment."

10. Finally, the terrorism that confronts the Western Democracies must be recognized for what it is: a totalitarian threat to freedom. Terrorists are no better than Nazis or fascists. Simply because they do not wear uniforms and march in a row does not make them any less totalitarian. The free people of the world must commit themselves to winning the battle against terrorism, just as they committed themselves in the battle against tyranny a generation ago.

~~I know that you can be counted on in this struggle.~~

The Reagan Administration is committed to maintain the security and freedom of the people of the United States, and we need your support in this effort. We are confident that we will prevail over the threat of terrorism, just as Americans have triumphed over threats to our freedom in the past. We will do it because it is our responsibility to do it. We owe it to those who came before us. We owe it ~~to those who~~ ^{to} will be the next generation of Americans.

Thank you for having me with you today.

When President Reagan welcomed home the hostages only a few days after his inauguration, he promised "swift and effective retribution" for acts of terrorism. I support that stance with all my heart. Because, as an American, I know we must have ~~the~~ courage to meet this challenge. ~~But terrorism~~; those engaged in terrorism do not respect reason; they do not respect sincerity. But I can tell you with Ronald Reagan as President they will respect the United States.